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Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1 )(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a) 
and 13(a) of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec­
tions 113,165,312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(b)(1)). Return to the 
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
copies specified. 

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If the holding company is an ESOPIESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the 
authorized individual who must sign the report 
I, WT. Weber, Jr. 

Name of the Holding Company Director and Official 

Chairman & President 
Title of the Holding Company Director and Official 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre­
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal 
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this 
report, the Reporter certifies that ii has the authority to provide this 
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies 
that ii has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or 
object to public release of information regarding that individual, 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules RegardilJU?}Vj.j · abifit ~fl; rma.tion," 12 C.FR Part 261, 
that the Re •:!22. ~. no_ in · !';/ydU onseIJI to public release of a// 

details i 'Zcz~f.~7~ 1ft•~ll!.'!.!:,~f 
'",':"?> ,. ~/" '":;"·.f,'"'if'"~•w;,,.,pf.._~,~-- ....... ..,,.......,) 

'if -.~: h>V 

For holding compa es not registered with the SEC­
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders· 

[8] is included with the FR Y-6 report 
D will be sent under separate cover 
D is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only 

RSSDID 
C.I. --------

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa­
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail 
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond 
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid 
0MB control number. 

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end) 

December 31, 2019 
Month/ Day / Year 

N/A 
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address 

Citizens Bancshares Inc. 
Legal Title of Holding Company 

201 Main Avenue/ P.O. Box 310 
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

Weston VW =-26'-4'-'5-=2 __ _ 
City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 
Julie M. Bush CFO 

------------
Name Title 

304-517-1036 
Area Code/ Phone Number/ Extension 

304-269-7886 
Area Code/ FAX Number 

jbush@citizensbankweston.com 
E-mail Address 

N/A 
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of [a=Nol_. 
this report submission?. ~ 
In accordance with the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along 
with the report .. ··········□ 

2. a letter justifying this request has been provided separately ... D 
NOTE: Information for which confidential treatment is being requested 

must be provided separately and labeled 
as "confidential." 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.50 hours per response, including time to gather and 
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collecijon of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW. Washington, DC 20551, and to the 
Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Proiect (7100-0297), Washington. DC 20503 . 12/2019 



For Use By Tiered Holding Companies 

FR Y-6 
Page 2of 2 

Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies 
below. 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company legal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P 0. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

C,ty State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location {if different from mailing address) Physical location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code c,1y State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

12/2012 



Form FR Y-6 

Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
Weston, West Virginia 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2019 

Report Item 

1: The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its stockholders. Three 
copies are enclosed. 

2: Organization Chart 

2a: Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
Weston, WV Li.SA 

"No LEI" 
Incorporated in West Virginia 

I 
100% 

I 
The Citizens Bank of Weston, Inc. 

Weston, WV Li.SA 
"No LEI" 

Incorporated in West Virginia 

2b: Submitted via email on March 25, 2020. 

3: Securities holders 

(1)(a)(b)c) Information pertaining to stockholders of record that directly or indirectly own, control, 
or hold with power to vote 5 percent or more of any class of voting securities of the 
bank holding company shown on page 2 of the proxy statement for the annual 
shareholders meeting to be held April 20, 2019. Please note that Securty National 
Trust Company, Wheeling, WV, 26003, is incorporated in the USA and all three 
members of the Advisory Committee that votes the stock are citizens of the USA The 
proxy statement is submitted herewith and is incorporated herein by reference. Further, 
the TA Whelan Trust owns 702,800 shares or 50.2% of the outstanding shares on 
record. The Advisory Committee members are Gene H. Edwards, Jr., W.T. Weber, Jr., 
and W.T. Weber, Ill. 

(2)(a)(b)c) None 



Results: A list of branches for your depository institution: CITIZENS BANK OF WESTON, INC., THE (ID_RSSD: 639633).
This depository institution is held by CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. (1133969) of WESTON, WV.
The data are as of 12/31/2019. Data reflects information that was received and processed through  03/05/2020.

Reconciliation and Verification Steps
1. In the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below
2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column

Actions
OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK'  in the Data Action column.
Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change'  in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column.
Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close'  in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column.
Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository institution, enter 'Delete'  in the Data Action column.
Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add'  in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column.

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper.

Submission Procedure
When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact.  See the detailed instructions on this site for more information.
If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail.

Note:
To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Close, Delete, or Add.
The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://y10online.federalreserve.gov.

* FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only.  Verification of these values is not required.

Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* Comments
OK Full Service (Head Office) 639633 CITIZENS BANK OF WESTON, INC., THE                                                                                      201 MAIN AVENUE                                                                                     WESTON                   WV 26452     LEWIS                                   UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required CITIZENS BANK OF WESTON, INC., THE                                                                                      639633
OK Full Service 1400438 JANE LEW BRANCH                                                                                                         47 INDUSTRIAL PARK ROAD                                                                             JANE LEW                 WV 26378     LEWIS                                   UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required CITIZENS BANK OF WESTON, INC., THE                                                                                      639633



Report Item 4: Insiders 
(1) (2) (3)(a)(b)(c) and (4)(a)(b)(c) 

(1) 
Name, 
City, State, 
Country 

Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 
Weston, WV 
USA 

W.T. Weber, Jr. 
Weston, WV 
USA 

W. T. Weber, Ill 
Weston, WV 
USA 

James L. Sherrell 
Weston, WV 
USA 

Charles C. Stalnaker 
Weston, WV 
USA 

R. Dennis Xander 
Buckhannon, WV 
USA 

T. A. Whelan Trust 
•voted by Advisory Com 

(2) 
Principal 
Occupation if other 
than with Bank 
Holding Company 

Retired 

Attorney 

Attorney 

Retired 

President & CEO 
Citizens Bank 

President 
Denex Petroleum 

Form FR Y-6 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2019 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

Director & 
Vice-Chairman & 
Secretary 

Director & 
Chairman & 
President 

Director & 
Treasurer 

Director 

Director 

Director 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiary 
Citizens Bank 

Director & 
Vice-Chairman 
& Secretary 

Director & 
Chairman 

Director 

Director 

Director 
President & CEO 

Director 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position with 
Other Businesses 
(include names of 
other businesses) 

N/A 

Attorney 
Weber & Weber 
Weston, WV USA 

Attorney 
Weber & Weber 
Weston, WV USA 

N/A 

N/A 

President 
Denex Petroleum 

(4)(a) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding 
Company 

1.76%* 

2.65%* 

0.09% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

50.20% 

(4)(b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares 
in Subsidiary 
Citizens Bank 

N/A** 

N/A** 

N/A** 

N/A** 

NIA .. 

N/A** 

(4)(c) 
Names of other companies 
(includes partnerships) 
if 25% or more of voting 
securities are held (List 
names of companies and 
percentage of voting 
securities held) 

N/A 

Black Dog, LLC (50%) 
Weber & Weber 
a proprietorship (100%) 

Black Dog, LLC (50%) 

NIA 

N/A 

Denex Petroleum Corp 
S Corp (100%) 
Denex Diversified Ventures 
C Corp (100%) 

* This includes 702,800 shares owned by Security National Trust Company as successor Trustee of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as successor Trustee of Bank One, 
West Virginia, N.A., as successor Trustee of the Charleston National Bank as Trustee of the Estate of T. A. Whelan, deceased, and voted by Advisory Committee which 
consists of Gene H. Edwards, Jr., W. T. Weber, Jr. and W. T. Weber, Ill. Gene H. Edwards, Jr., recieves 8.3341 % of the trust income . 

.. The subsidiary is owned 100% by Holding Company. 
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I , 
---- i 

A Message for our Stockholders 

The year just ended marked another profitable year for Citizens Bancshares and its sole 
subsidiary Citizens Bank. We are pleased to provide you with the 2019 Annual Report. It was another 

successful year with record growth in earnings. 

We finished the year with total assets of $205,248,000 an increase of 3.1% from the 2018 total of 
$199,034,000. Deposits were $178,821,000 at year end, an increase of $14,150,000 or 8.6%. Securities 
sold under agreements to repurchase declined to $2,213,000 a decrease of $9,942,000 or 81.8%. This 
decrease was a result of management's decision not to match interest rates offered by other financial 

institutions. 

Loans totaled $122,551,000 up 3.5% or $4,157,000 from the 2018 total of $118,394,000. During 
2019 our loan staff worked very hard to increase our loan portfolio. The increase was accomplished in a 

soft loan market in Lewis County. 

Citizens Bancshares remains strong with total stockholders' equity of $23,336,000 and a capital 
to assets ratio of 11.37%. Earnings in 2019 of $3,334,000 reflected an increase of $77,000 or 2.36%. Our 
increase in earnings in 2019, however modest, was achieved in a falling rate environment. Our increased 
loan portfolio was the principal driver of our successful year ending December 2019. 

The 2019 return on average assets was 1.62% down from 1.63% in 2018 a decrease of 0.01%. 
Total dividends paid in 2019 were $1.25 per share for a total payout of$1,750,000. From 2004 to 2019 
annual dividends have increased from $1,120,000 to $1,750,000. Your Board of Directors voted to 
increase the first quarter 2020 dividend from $0.25 to $0.30. 

Looking forward through 2020 our local economy will remain challenged. The economic forecasts 
call for further rate cuts beyond the unusual .50% cut in March. Further, at the time of this message our 
local, national and global economies are under pressure from the coronavirus epidemic, declining oil 
prices and stock values. We are hopeful that with the hard work of our staff and continued guidance of 

our Board of Directors we will have a successful 2020. 

Thank you, our shareholders, for your continued trust and support. 

Chairman and President, 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 

I' r }-/ -v1-C 
LY\._- \__~:JG.A=::~ 
Charles C. Stalnaker 
President and C.E.O. 
The Citizens Bank of Weston 



To the Board of Directors 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. 
·weston, West Virginia 

+ Conley 
CPA GROUP, PLLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

\Ve have audited the accompanying financial statements of Citizens Bancshal'es, Inc. and 
subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Ma11age111e11t's Responsibility for the Fi11a11cia/ Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial shttements in accordance with accounting principles gcncrnlly accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
l'elevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, ,Yhether due to fraud or error. 

Amlit01·'s Respousibilitv 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted om· audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that ,Ye plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or cr1·or. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

\Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

1-1 

2857 White Hall 8lvd. • Fairmont, \VV 26554 • 30:\.366.2270 phone• 304.366.2338 fax• nrnleyl'pni~ro11p.1.:om 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financfal position of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations an<l cash flows for the years 
end eel December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, 

Fairmont, West Virginia 
March 9, 2020 

1-2 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

December 31, 2019 and 2018 

2019 2018 
ASSETS 

Cash and due from banks (Note 2) s 44,251,081 $ 24,286,166 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 3,728,272 3 659 717 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 47 979 353 27,945,883 

Investment securities (Note 3) 
Securities available-for-sale at approximate market value 33,630,027 51,540,508 

Loans (Note 4) 122,551,339 118,393,868 
Allowance for loan losses (1,332,711) {1,375,346) 

Net Loans 121,218,628 117,018,522 

Bank premises, furniture and equipment, net (Note 5) 1,011,293 1,043,122 
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 1,408,925 I 485 570 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 205 248 226 $ I 99.033.605 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Deposits (Note 6) 
Non-interest bearing $ 54,009,527 $ 46,413,932 
Interest bearing 124,811,502 118,249,109 

Total Deposits 178,82 I ,029 164,663,041 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Note 7) 2,212,996 12,154,725 
Interest, taxes and other liabilities 877 897 944 350 

Total Liabilities 181,911,922 177,762,116 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock, $.125 par value, 8,000,000 shares authorized; 
1,400,000 shares issued and outstanding 175,000 175,000 

Additional paid-in capital 2,825,000 2,825,000 
Retained earnings (Note 14) 20,647,960 19,063,900 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) (Note 13) {311,656) {792,411) 

Total Stockholders' Equity 23,336,304 21,271,489 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 20S 248 226 $ 192 QJJ,60'i 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 3 I, 2019, 2018, and 2017 

2019 
INTEREST INCOME 

Interest and fees on loans S 7,726,730 
Deposits in other banks 71,887 
Investment securities: 

Taxable 1,176,337 
Tax-exempt 57 791 

Total Interest Income 9,032,745 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Deposits 919,604 
Other 65,556 

Total Interest Expense 985,160 

NET INTEREST INCOME 8,047,585 
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) 150,000 
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 7,897,585 

NONINTEREST INCOME 
Bankcard fees 398,521 
Customer service fees 335,397 
Other operating income 37,243 

Total Noninterest Income 771 161 

NONINTEREST EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 2,100,623 
Occupancy 234,664 
Equipment expense 228,347 
Data processing 411,127 
Other operating expenses (Note 8) 1,312,425 

Total Noninterest Expenses 4,287,186 

Income Before Income Taxes 4,381,560 
Income Taxes (Note 9) 1,047,500 

NET INCOME $ 3.334.060 

Net Income Per Common Share s 2 38 

2018 

$ 7,321,354 
50,462 

1,032,713 
78,412 

8,482,941 

643,923 
122,886 
766,809 

7,716,132 
97 718 

7,618,414 

390,389 
326,443 

91 591 
808,423 

2,042,976 
283,759 
207,006 
396,059 

1,250,480 
4,180,280 

4,246,557 
990,000 

$ 3,256,557 

$ 233 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

2 

2017 

$ 6,441,840 
34,008 

726,975 
92,256 

7,295,079 

422,844 
55,529 

478,373 

6,816,706 
120,000 

6,696,706 

351,437 
306,360 

32,943 
690 740 

1,955,689 
268,085 
174,698 
394,505 

1,246,203 
4,039,180 

3,348,266 
1,339,200 

S 2.009.066 

$ IH 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 

2019 2018 

Net Income $ 3,334,060 $ 3,256,557 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax: 

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities: 
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during 

period (Net of tax of$(127,500), $62,700, 
and $13,000) 499 804 (169,630) 

499,804 (169,630) 

Defined benefit pension plans: 

Net (loss) gain arising during period (Net of 
tax of $1,870, $17,126, and $(5,443)) (8,518) 78,241 

Add: ASC 715 Event (Net of tax ofS-0-, 
$-0-, and $( 15,463)) 

Less: amortization of prior service cost 
included in net periodic pension cost 
(Net of tax of$2,430, $9,685, and $12,195) (10,531) (26,183) 

(19,049) 52 058 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 480,755 (117,572) 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S lSHSJS $ 3 l lS,985 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial sh1tements. 

3 

2017 

$ 2,009,066 

{18,436) 
(18,436) 

10,566 

30,016 

(23,673) 
16 909 

(1,527) 

$ 2,001,532 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 

Accumulated 
Additional Other Total 

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders' 
Stock Capital Earnings Income {Loss) Equity 

Balance, December 31, 2016 s 175,000 S 2,825,000 S17,072,077 s (559,112) S19,512,965 

Net income 2,009,066 2,009,066 

Other comprehensive (loss) (1,527) {1,527) 

Total Comprehensive Income 2,007,539 

Reclassification for effects of 
remeasuring deferred tax 
asset (Note 19) 114,200 (114,200) 

Cash dividends - $1.17 per share {1,638,000) {1,638,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2017 175,000 2,825,000 17,557,343 (674,839) 19,882,504 

Net income 3,256,557 3,256,557 

Other comprehensive (loss) (117,572) (I 17,572) 

Total Comprehensive Income 3,138,985 

Cash dividends - S l.25 per share {I, 750,000) {1,750,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2018 175,000 2,825,000 19,063,900 (792,411) 21,271,489 

Net income 3,334,060 3,334,060 

Other comprehensive income 480,755 480 755 

Total Comprehensive Income 3,814,815 

Cash dividends - $1.25 per share {1,750,000) {1,750,000) 

Balance, December 31, 2019 s 175,000 $ 2,825,000 $20,647,260 $ (311,656) 523,336,304 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 



CONSOLIDATED STATE~IENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

Years Ended December 31 1 2019, 2018, and 2017 

2019 2018 

OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Net income s 3,334,060 $ 3,256,557 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for loan losses 150,000 97,718 
Depreciation, amortization and accretion, net 92,121 165,706 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 12,000 (20,000) 
Loss on disposition of premises, furniture and equipment 911 
Loss on sale of other real estate owned 1,000 
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable and other assets 20,445 (81,495) 
Increase (decrease) in interest payable and other liabilities {89,802) {9,992) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 3,519,824 3,409,405 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Securities available-for-sale 

Proceeds from maturities and calls 37,347,500 6,130,653 
Payments for purchases (18,731,427) (9,562,652) 

Net (increase) decrease in loans ( 4,465, I 06) 1,077,947 
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 35,000 
(Additions) to premises, furniture and equipment !138,580) ! 145,779) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 14,047,387 {2,499,831) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 14,157,988 (2,185,506) 
Net (decrease) increase in repurchase agreements (9,941,729) (4,228,078) 
Cash dividends !l,750,000) {1,750,000) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 2,466,259 {8,163,584) 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,033,470 (7,254,010) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 27,945,883 35,199,893 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year s 47,272,JS, S 27,245,883 

2017 

$ 2,009,066 

120,000 
183,449 
129,200 

(64,992) 
65 717 

2,442,440 

[9,439,910 
(25,357,529) 

1,092,596 

!158,952) 

{4,983,975) 

8,483,695 
4,070,333 

!1,638,000) 

10,916,028 

8,374,493 

26,825,400 

$ ,s 122 82, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

December 31, 2019 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Citizens Bancshares, Inc. (the 
Company) and its wholly~owned subsidiary, The Citizens Bankof\Veston 1 Inc. (the Bank). All 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The 
Company consolidates subsidiaries in which it either holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% 
of the voting rights or where it exercises control. The Company has no other entities that arc 
required to be consolidated under generally accepted accounting principles. 

Nature of Operations 
The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through 
its offices in Lewis County, \Vest Virginia. Its primary market area is Lewis, Upshur, and Harrison 
Counties, \Vest Virginia. Its prinrnry deposit products are demand deposits, savings and term 
certificate accounts and its prima11' lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and 
consumer loans. 

Use of Estimates 
In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP), management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance 
sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant 
change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of 
deferred tax assets, other-than-temporary impairments of securities, and the fair value of financial 
instruments. 

Reclassifications 
Certain items from 2018 and 2017 have been reclassified to conform to 2019 financial statement 
presentation. 

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 
Most of the Company's activities are with customers located within Lewis, Braxton, Gilmer, 
Harrison and Upshur Counties, \Vest Virginia. Note 3 discusses the types of securities the 
Company utilizes for investments. Note 4 discusses the types of loans the Company grants to its 
customers. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank's loan portfolio contained a concentration in 
commercial rental real estate of approximately 10% and 13%, respectively, and a concentration in 
residential rental real estate of approximately 10%. There were no other concentrations of loans to 
any other categories of borrowers which exceeded 10% of total loans. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash 
and balances due from banks, federal funds sold, and certain interest-bearing deposits in other 
banks. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Securities 
i\fanagement determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. Debt 
securities that the Company has the positive intent and the nbility to hold to maturity arc carried at 
amortized cost. Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time are classified as available for sale 
and carried at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on securities classified as avaibble 
for sale are carried as a separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), 
net of deferred income taxes. 

Gains or losses on sales of securities recognized by the specific identification method arc reported in 
securities gains and losses within noninterest income or noninterest expense of the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. The Company reviews securities on a quarterly basis for possible 
impairment. The Company determines whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost 
basis of a security is other-than-temporary. This determination requires significant judgment. In 
making this judgment, the Company's review includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances of 
each individual investment such as the severity of loss, the length of time the fair value has been 
below cost, the expectation for that security's performance, the creditworthiness of the issuer, 
recent changes in external credit ratings, and the assessment of collection of the security's 
contractual amounts from the issuer or issuers. 

If the Company intends to sell, or it is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell an 
impaired debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period credit 
loss, other-than-temporary impairment is recognized in earnings. The credit loss is defined as the 
difference between the present value of cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost 
basis. The amount recognized in earnings is equal to the entire difference between the security's 
amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date. If the Company does not intend to 
sell, and is not more likely than not it will be required to sell the impaired debt security prior to 
recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period credit loss, the other-than-temporary 
impairment is separated into the following: 1) the amount representing the credit loss, which is 
recognized within noninterest income or expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income, and 
2) the amount related to all other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income 
within shareholders' equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 
The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Pittsburgh System, is 
required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB. Based on redemption provisions 
of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost. At its discretion, the 
FHLB may declare dividends on the stock. l\fanagement reviews for impairment based on the 
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the FHLB stock. 

7 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Loans 
The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to its customers. A substantial 
portion of the loan portfolio is represented by residential and commercial mortgage loans 
throughout Lewis, Upshur, and Ha1-rison Counties, \Vest Virginia. The ability of the Company's 
debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions 
in this area. 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity or pay-off gcnernlly are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted 
for the allowance for loan losses and any premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest 
income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees and direct loan 
origination costs are primarily being recognized as collected and incurred. The nsc of this method 
of recognition does not produce results that are materially different from results which would have 
been produced if such costs and fees were deferred and amortized as an adjustment of the loan 
yield. Premiums and discounts on purchased loans are amortized as a level yield adjustment over 
the respective term of the loan. 

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 
clays past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Personal loans are 
typically charged-off no later than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on the contractual 
terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if 
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. 

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is 
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or 
cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual 
status when all the principal and interest amounts contrnctuall;y due are brought current and 
future payments are reasonably assured. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 
The allo,·i:ance for loan losses is established as losses arc estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is con finned. Subsequent recoveries, if 
any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 
management's periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the 
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to 
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision 
as more information becomes available. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued) 
The allowance consists of alloratecl and general components. The allocated component relates to 
loans that are classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is 
established when the discounted cash flmvs (or collateral value or observable market price) of the 
impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that Imm. The general component covers non­
classified loans and is based on historical charge-off experience and expected loss given default 
derived from the Company's internal risk rating process. Other adjustments may be made to the 
allowance for pools of loans after an assessment of internal or external influences on credit quality 
that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that 
the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in 
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment 
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines 
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into 
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length 
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the 
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 

Generally, the Company considers impaired loans to include: 

Loans classified as non-accrual loans 
Loans which have been classified as substandard, doubtful, or loss and/or which have 
a specific loan loss allocation 
Loans past due for longer than 90 days that have a principal balance of $50,000 or 
greater 

Periodically, large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans not included in the above 
categories are collectively evalm:1ted for impairment. 

Off-Balance Sheet Credit-related Financial Instruments 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, 
including commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are 
recorded when they are funded. 

Foreclosed Assets 
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for· sale and are initially recorded at 
fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a ne,v cost basis. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the 
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and 
changes in the valuation allowance arc included in net expenses from foreclosed assets. 
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NOTE I. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Premises and Equipment 
Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
computed primarily on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

Advertising Costs 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs expensed for the years ended 
December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, were approximately $71 1800, $44,600, and $42,500, 
respectively. 

Income Taxes 
The Company evaluates its income tax expense utilizing two components: current and deferred. 
The Company determines current income taxes, i.e. taxes to be paid or refunded for the current 
period, by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of 
deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or 
balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax 
effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted 
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur. 

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between 
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more-likely-than-not, based on the technical 
merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more-likely­
than-not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination 
also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that 
meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the 
largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon 
settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The 
determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition 
threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and is 
subject to management's judgment. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, 
based on the \\'eight of evidence available, it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of a 
deferred tax asset will not be realized. 

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of operating 
expenses. 

The Company and the Bank are subject to income taxes in the ll.S. Federal and \Vest Virginia 
jurisdictions. The Company and its subsidiary file consolidated federal and state income tax 
returns. 

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was enacted in December 2017, had a substantial impact on the 
Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 3 t, 2017. Note 19 discusses the 
impact of the Tax Cuts and ,Job Acts in more detail. 

Earnings Per Common Share 
Earnings per share represent income available to common stockholders divided by the n'cighted­
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. 



NOTE I. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CO:'<TINUED) 

Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other 
comprehensive income includes unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale, and unrealized 
losses related to factors other than credit on debt securities, and changes in the funded status of the 
pension plan which are also recognized as separate components of equity. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other 
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 10. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and 
matters of significant judgment. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could 
significantly affect the estimates. 

Cash Flows 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary paid approximately $1,103,000, $1,033,000, and $1,199,000 
of applicable income taxes during 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively. The Company made transfers 
of loans to foreclosed assets held for resale of$115,000, S21,000, and S-0-during 2019, 2018, and 
2017, respectively. Payments of interest did not vary materially from interest reported on the 
consolidated statements of income for the respective years. 

Ne,,.1 Accounting Standards 
The following standards were adopted during the year ended December 31, 2017: 

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, "Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income". ASU No. 2018-02 provides guidance regarding 
reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded 
tax effects resulting from the revised federal corporate income rate of21% from the Company's 
historical 34% rate. This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting period of 
December 31, 2019; however, the Company early adopted ASU No. 2018-02 for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. See Note 19 for further discussion. 

The following standards were adopted during the year ended December 31, 2019: 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenues from Contracts with Customers". 
ASU No. 2014-09 provides a framework to address revenue recognition issues, creating more 
consistency and comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities and industries, and 
improves the usefulness of information provided to financial statement users. The Company's 
revenue is composed of net interest income and noninterest income. The scope of the guidance 
explicitly excludes net interest income as well as many other revenues for financial assets and 
liabilities including loans, leases, securities, and derivatives. Accordingly, the majority of the 
Company's revenues n'ere not affected. This update is effective for the Company's annual 
reporting period of December 31, 2019, and did not have a material impact on the Company's 
consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTE I. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Standards (Continued) 
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, "Financial Instruments-Overall (ASC 
Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities". 
The amendments in this update aim to enhance the reporting model for financial instruments and 
to provide users of financial statements with more decision-useful information. This update is 
effective for the Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2019, and did not have a 
material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASl/ No. 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): 
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments". The objective of ASU No. 2016-15 is 
to reduce the existing diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts and cash payments arc 
presented and classified in the statement of cash flm-Ys. This update is effective for the Company's 
annual reporting period of December 31, 2019, and did not have a material impact on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits". ASU 
No. 2017-07 reflects changes to improve the presentation of net periodic pension cost and net 
periodic postretirement benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans as well as other 
postretirement benefits. This update is effective for the Company"s annual reporting period of 
December 31, 2019, and did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. 

The following standards will be adopted during future reporting periods: 

In June 2016, the F ASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, 1'Financial Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments". The amendments in ASU No. 
2016-13 reflect an entity's current estimate of all expected credit losses and broadens the 
information an entity must consider in developing its expected credit loss estimate for assets 
measured either collectively or individually, including the use of forecasted information. The FASB 
has issued subsequent AS Us that clarify or improve the codification, as well as making the 
codification easier to understand and easier to apply by eliminating inconsistencies. The 
subsequent ASUs include: 

• Issued November 2018, ASU No. 2018-19, "Codification Improvements to Topic 326, 
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses" 

• Issued April 2019, ASlJ No. 2019-04, "Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial 
Instruments- Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial 
lnstru men ts" 

• Issued May 2019, ASU No, 2019-05, "Financial Instruments- Credit Losses" 
• Issued November 2019, ASll No. 2019-10, "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, 

Derivatives and Hedging, and Leases" 
• Issued November 2019, ASU No. 2019-11, "Codification Improvements to Topic 326, 

Financial Instruments - Credit Losses" 
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NOTE I. 

NOTE 2, 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Standards (Continued) 
The Company is currently assessing the impact ASU 2016-13 and the related subsequent updates 
will have on its consolidated financial statements and will apply the amendments in this update 
through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings, as necessary, for the annual reporting 
period of December 31, 2023. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-08, '1 Receivables-Nonrefundable Fees and Other 
Costs", ASU No. 2017-08 amends the amortization period for certain purchased callable debt 
securities held at a premium, from the contractual life of the instrument to the earliest call date. 
This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2020. The 
Company does not expect ASU No. 2017-08 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, "Fair Value Measurements". ASU 2018-13 
improves the effectiveness of disclosure requirements on fair value measurements. This update is 
effective for the Company's annual reporting period of December 31, 2020. The Company does not 
expect ASU No. 2018-13 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASl! No. 2018-14, "Compensation- Retirement Benefits­
Defined Benefit Plans -General". ASU 2018-14 improves the effectiveness of disclosure 
requirements on defined retirement benefit plans. This update is effective for the Company's 
annual reporting period of December 31, 2021. The Company does not expect ASll No. 2018-14 to 
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, "Income Taxes". ASU 2019-12 simplifies the 
accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740 
and improve consistent application of and simplify GAAP for other areas of Topic 740 by clarifying 
and amending existing guidance. This update is effective for the Company's annual reporting 
period of December 31, 2022. The Company does not expect ASU No. 2019-12 to have a material 
impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances on hand or ,vith the Federal Reserve 
Bank. The required reserve balance as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, was approximately 
Sl,671,000 and $1,436,000, respectively. Additionally, in order to maintain a separate line of credit, 
the Bank is required to maintain a $5,000 reserve balance account with another financial institution. 
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NOTE 3. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

The amortized cost and fair values of available-for-sale securities, with gross unrealized gains and 
losses are summarized as follows: 

Decembcr31 2019 
Gross Gross Approximate 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains (Losses} Value 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GS Es) s 12,849,789 s 101,859 s (20,107) s 12,931,541 
State and municipal securities 2,660,747 32,741 (1,289) 2,692,199 
Corporate securities l8,0H,934 42 318 {77,965) 18,006,287 

$ 33,552,470 s 176,218 s (22,361) s 33,630,027 

December31 2018 
Gross Gross Approximate 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains {Losses) Value 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GSEs) s 40,915,064 s 33,587 $ (371,323) $ 40,577,328 
State and municipal securities 3,969,633 13,574 (24,447) 3,958,760 
Corporate securities 7,205,558 3 158 {204,296) 7,004,420 

$ 52,020,25' s 50,312 $ (600,066) $ S!,540 508 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-sponsored enterprises (GSEs) include Federal National Mortgage Association, 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal Home Loan 
Banks. 

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company held no securities of any single issuer (excluding 
the U.S. government-sponsored enterprises) \'t'ith a book value that exceeded 10% of 
stockholders' equity. 

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities by contractual maturity at 
December 31, 2019 were as follows: 

Due within 1 year 
Due after 1 year through S years 
Due after 5 years through 10 years 
Due after 10 years 

$ 

s 

Available-for-Sale 
Amortized Fair 

Cost Value 

1,098,663 $ 1,103,641 
29,460,711 29,530,465 

1,751,015 1,734,290 
1,242.081 1,261.631 

J3,552,J10 $ 33 630 021 

Investment securities with an approximate can11ing amount ofSl2,932,000 and $25,739,000 at 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits ::ind for other 
purposes required or permitted by law. 

For the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, there were no sales of securities. 

Temporarily Impaired Securities 

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the entity's investments with 
unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment 
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position 
at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Temporarily Impaired Securih'es (Continued) 

Available-for-sale securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position are as follm'l-'S: 

LS. gonrnment-sponsored 
enterprises (GSEs) 

State and municipal securities 
Corpora tr srcuritics 

Total 

l '.S. g°' ernment-sponsored 
enterprises (GSE:s) 

Stale and municipal securities 
Corporate securities 

Total 

Less Than 12 \lonths 
(;ross 

l'nrcalizrd 
(Losses) 

s (9,289) 
(1,289) 

{-19!-152) 
s (60 0 30) 

s 

Fair 
\'alue 

1,990.711 
-156,199 

111765.926 
SJJ 212 836 

Less Than 12 \lonths 
Gross 

linrealizcd Fair 
(Losses) Yahn· 

s (6,466) S 2,991,003 
(3,187) l,335,129 

jl02.223) 4,167,679 
s (111816) S 8423811 

December 31 2019 
OvH 12 \Ionths 

Gross 
l 1 nrralizc<l 

(Losses) 

s (111,818) 

(281513) 
s (39 Bil 

Fak 
\'alnc 

S 3,988,303 

.'71) 026 
S J 4.:;3 pl) 

December JI. 2018 
Orer 12 i\lonths 

Gross 
l 111realizetl Fair 

flosses) \'a\ue 

s (364,857) S33,647,066 
(21,260) 1,707,302 

{102,073) 2,347,432 
s (488 120) Sl'Z 'Zill 800 

Total 
Gross 

Cu realized 
(LOSSt'S) 

s (20,107) 
(1,289) 

(77 1965) 
s (99 361) 

1-'air 
\'a\ue 

S 5,979,01-1 
-156,199 

1212351952 
518 671 ](,:=i 

Total 
Gross 

hirealized Fair 
(Losses) \'alne 

s (371,323) S36,638,069 
(24,447) 3,042,431 

{204,296) 6 515.111 
s (600 llGG) S4612:=i6ll 

At December 31, 2019, there were six GSE securities with a combined unrealized loss of 
$20,107. The contractual cash flmvs of the GSE securities are guaranteed by an agency of the 
ll.S. government. In addition, there were two state and municipal securities with a combined 
unrealized loss ofSl,289, and eleven corporate bonds with a combined unrealized loss of 
$77,965. 

At December 31, 2018, there were thirty-seven GSE securities with a combined unrealized loss 
ofS371,323. The contractual cash flows of the GSE securities are guaranteed by an agency of 
the U.S. Government. In addition, there were six state and municipal securities '"'ith a 
combined unrealized loss of $2..i,447, and nine corporate bonds with a combined unrealized loss 
of $204,296. 

Because the decline in market values is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, 
and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more-likely-than-not the 
Company n·ill be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which 
may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily 
impaired at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Other-Thau-Temporary Impairmeut 
Upon acquisition of a security, the Company decides whether it is within the scope of the accounting 
guidance for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets or will be evaluated for impairment 
under the accounting guidance for investments in debt and equity securities. At December 31, 2019 
and 2018, the Company has no beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. 

NOTE 4. LOANS 

Loans and loan commitments are comprised primarily of loans to borrowers in real estate 
development, construction, healthcare, retail/service and other industries in north central \\'est 
Virginia. Collateralization centers primarily around commercial and residential real estate, personal 
property and business equipment. 

A summary of the component bah111ces of loans at December 31, 2019 and 2018, is as follon'S: 

Mortgage loans on real estate: 
Residential 1-4 family 
Commercial and agricultural 
Construction and land development 

Total l\1ortgage Loans on Real Estate 

Commercial and agricultural loans 

Consumer installment loans - personal 
Total Gross Loans 
Less Unearned Interest 

Total Loans 

Troubled Debt Restructurings 

2019 2018 

$ 42,616,879 $ 38,960,916 
26,034,863 34,729,354 

880 149 1,130,476 
69,531,891 74,820,746 

45,785,516 36,776,167 

7,313,249 6,890,009 
122,630,656 118,486,922 

(79,317) {93,054) 

$122,551,332 $ 118,393,868 

The restructuring of a loan is considered a "troubled debt restructuring" if both ( l) the debtor is 
experiencing financial difficulties and (2) the creditor has granted a concession. Concessions may 
include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal forgiveness, restructuring 
amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. As of December 31, 
2019 and 2018, troubled debt restructurings totaled approximately $2,987,000 and $2,817,000, 
respectively, and ,Yere comprised of twenty-four lending relationships, respectively. For 2019 and 
2018, no troubled debt restructurings had defaulted and amounts specifically reserved in the 
allowance for loan loss were $39,300 and $42,500, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 is 
as follows: 

Balance beginning of period 
Loans charged-off 
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off 
Provision for loan losses 
Balance end of period 

$ 

$ 

2019 

1,375,346 
(199,758) 

7,123 
150,000 

1.332.711 

2018 2017 

s 1,193,220 $ 1,083,367 
(216,497) (11,474) 
300,905 1,327 
97 718 120,000 

$ 1,315 H6 s 1,123,220 

The Bank maintains a loan grading system to reflect the credit quality of commercial loans. 
Commercial loan risk grades are determined based on an evaluation of the relevant characteristics of 
each loan, assigned at the inception of each loan and adjusted thereafter at any time to reflect changes 
in the risk profile and sustainability of the primary source of repayment and overall financial strength 
of the borrower. This includes an analysis of cash flow available to repay debt, profitability, liquidity, 
leverage, and overall financial trends. Other factors include management, industry or property type 
risks, an assessment of secondary sources of repayment such as collateral or guarantees, other terms 
and conditions of the loans that may increase or reduce its risk, and economic conditions and other 
external factors that may influence repayment capability and financial condition. 

The Bank engages an external consultant to conduct an annual review of all commercial borrowers 
vt'ith an aggregate indebtedness of S 1,250,000 or greater. 

The Bank uses an eight-point risk rating system. The first five categories are considered not criticized, 
and are aggregated as "Pass" rated. The criticized rating categories utilized by management generally 
follow bank regulatory definitions. 

Loans classified as Special Mention have potential weaknesses that deserve management's close 
attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment 
prospects for the loans or in the credit position at some future date. Borrowers may be experiencing 
adverse operating trends such as declining revenues or margins, Adverse economic or market 
conditions, such as interest rate increases or the entry of a new competitor, may also support a special 
mention rating. Non financial reasons for rating a loan as Special Mention include management 
problems, pending litigation, an ineffective loan agreement or other material structural weakness, and 
any other significant deviation from prudent lending practices. 

Loans classified as Substandard are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying 
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a ,·rell-defined 
weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt by the borrower. They are 
characterized by the distinct possibility the Bank \\/ill sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not 
corrected. They require more intensive supervision by management. Substandard loans arc generally 
characterized by current or expected unprofitable operations, inadequate debt service coverage, 
inadequate liquidity, or marginal capitalization. Repayment may depend on collateral. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

Loans classified as Doubtful are loans that have all the weaknesses inherent in one classified as 
Substandard vfith the added characteristic the weaknesses make collection in full, on the basis of 
currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and imprnbable. Loans classified 
as Doubtful have a high probability of total or substantial loss, but because of specific pending events 
that may strengthen the loan, its classification as Loss is deferred. Doubtful borrowers are usually in 
default, lack adequate liquidity or capital, and lack the resources necessary to remain an operating 
entity. 

Residential real estate and consumer loans are not assigned specific risk grades. These loans are 
grnclecl based upon an individual loan's delinquency status. All loans that are less than 90 days past 
due are considered "Pass". Loans that are greater than 90 days past due are considered 
"Su bstan cl a rd". 

The following tables represent the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate Pass and 
the criticized categories of Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful as of December 3 I, 2019 and 
2018: 

Pass 

Special i\:lention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

Pass 

Special i\lention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

$ 23,912,378 

238,156 

2,691,207 

S 26,841,741 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

$ 30,394,426 

3,393,699 

1,998,434 

S 3'\. 786.559 

Other 
Commercial 

S 45,581,039 

204,477 

$45,785,516 

Other 
Commercial 

S 35,267,056 

379,943 

1,129,168 

S 36.776,167 

19 

2019 
Residential 
Real Estate Consumer Total 

$ 40,633,428 $ 7,241,616 $117,368,461 

209,142 3,639 450,937 

1,768,263 67,994 4,731,941 

$42,610.833 $ 7,313.249 5 122 551 339 

2018 
Residential 

Real Estate Consumer Total 

S 37,467,133 s 6,850,454 $ l09,979,069 

691,859 4,465,501 

782,141 39,555 3,949,298 

5 38.941.133 s 6,890.009 $ 118, l93.868 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

Management further monitors the performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio by analyzing 
the age of the portfolio. l\.'Icasurement of delinquency and past due status are based on the contractual 
terms of each loan. 

Past due loans are reviewed on a monthly basis to identify loans for nonaccnrnl status. Generally, 
when collection in full of the principal and interest is jeopardized, the loan is placed on non accrual. 
The accrual of interest income on most loans generally is discontinued when a loan becomes 90 to 120 
days past due as to principal and interest. However, regardless of delinquency status, if a loan is fully 
secured and in the process of collection and resolution of collection is expected in the near term 
(generally less than 90 days), then the loan will not be placed on nonaccrual. \Vhen interest accruals 
are discontinued, unpaid interest recognized in income in the current year is reversed, and unpaid 
interest accrued in prior years is charged to the allowance for loan losses. The Bank's method of 
income recognition for loans that are classified as nonaccnrnl is to recognize interest income on a cash 
basis or apply the cash receipt to principal when the ultimate collectability of principal is in doubt. 
Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when the estimated net realizable value of 
collateral exceeds the principal balance and accrued interest, and the loan is in the process of 
collection. Nonaccrual loans will not normally be returned to accrual status unless all past due 
principal and interest has been paid. 

The following tables present the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aging categories of 
performing loans and nonaccnrnl loans as of December 31, 2019 and 2018: 

2019 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total 

Current $ 24,708,924 $ 45,395,300 S 39,625,692 s 7,067,150 $ 116,797,066 
30-90 Days 1,871,591 200,000 1,707,966 198,202 3,977,759 
> 90 Days 142,490 56 Ill I 766 200 367 

Subtotal 26,723,005 45,595,300 41,389,769 7,267,118 120,975,192 

Nonaccrual 118,736 190216 1,221,064 46 131 I 576 147 

TOTAL $ 26,841141 S 45,785,516 $ 42,6J0,8l3 $ 1,lll H2 S 122,55 I ,332 

20 



NOTE4. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

LOANS (CONTINUED) 

2018 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer 

Current S 34,129,140 S 35,403,837 $ 36,832,081 $ 6,758,942 
30-90 Days 1,440,613 I, 180,036 1,375,670 105,516 
> 90 Days 335 377 

Subtotal 35,569,753 36,583,873 38,543,128 6,864,458 

Nonaccrnal 216,806 192,294 398,005 25 551 

TOTAL $ 35,786,552 $ 36176 167 $ 38 241,133 $ 6 820 002 

Total 
$113,124,000 

4,101,835 
335 377 

117,561,212 

832,656 

$118,323 868 

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the opinion of management, based on current information 
and events, the collection of principal and interest in accordance with the loan contract is doubtful. 
Typically, the Bank does not consider loans for impairment unless a sustained period of delinquency 
(i.e. 90-plus days) is noted or there are subsequent events that impact repayment probability (i.e. 
negative financial trends, bankruptcy filings, eminent foreclosure proceedings, etc.). Consistent \'r'ith 
the Bank's existing method of income recognition for loans, interest on impaired loans, except those 
classified as nonaccrnal, is recognized as income using the accrual method. Impaired loans, or 
portions thereof, are charged off when deemed uncollectible. 

The following tables set forth the Bank's impaired loan information by class of loans as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018: 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

Other 
Commercial 

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment $ 
Related Allowance 

356,143 
2,992 

s 

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment 2,573,220 

Total Impaired Loans: 
Recorded 

Investment 2,929,363 
Unpaid Principal 

Balance 2,929,363 
Average Recorded 

Investment 2,747,317 

204,477 

204,477 

204,477 

666,823 

21 

2019 
Residential 
Real Estate 

s 908,104 
68,325 

1,069,301 

1,977,405 

1,977,405 

1,725,703 

Consumer 

$ 22,065 
39 

49,568 

71,633 

71,633 

55,594 

Total 

S 1,286,312 
71,356 

3,896,566 

5,182,878 

5,182,878 

5,195,437 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

Other 
Commercial 

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

2018 
Residential 
Real Estate Consumer Total 

Investment S 308,505 
2,916 

s 141,414 
6,555 

s 650,161 
55,110 

$ S 1,100,080 
Related Allowance 

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance: 
Recorded 

Investment 21256,765 987,75-l 

Total Impaired Loans: 
Recorded 

Investment 2,565,270 1,129,168 
Unpaid Principal 

Balance 2,565,270 1,129,168 
Average Recorded 

Investment 2,439,752 1,511,812 

823,839 

1,474,000 

1,474,000 

1,431,968 

39,555 

39,555 

39,555 

47,066 

64,581 

4,107,913 

5,207,993 

5,207,993 

5,430,598 

The following table sumnrnrizes the recognition of interest income on impaired loans for the years 
ended December 31: 

2019 2018 2017 

Average impaired loans S 5,195,000 $ 5,431,000 S 5,731,000 

Amount of contractual interest on impaired loans 336,000 279,000 271,000 

Amount of interest income recognized on a cash basis 319,000 290,000 247,000 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

The allowance for loan losses is management's estimate of the probable credit losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio. Management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the 
appropriate provision for credit losses is based upon a q1rnrterly evaluation of the portfolio. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective and requires significant estimates, including the amounts and 
timing of estimated future cash flows, estimated losses on pools of loans based on historical loss 
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which are susceptible to constant and 
significant change. Allocations are made for specific loans based upon management's estimate of the 
borrower's ability to repay and other factors impacting collectability. Other loans not specifically 
reviewed are segregated by class and allocations are made based upon historical loss percentages 
adjusted for current environmental factors. The environmental factors considered for the portfolio 
includes estimated probable inherent but undetected losses within the portfolio due to uncertainties in 
economic conditions, delays in obtaining information, including unfavorable information about a 
borrower's financial condition, the difficulty in identifying triggering events that correlate perfectly to 
subsequent loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet fully manifested themselves in loss allocation 
factors. In addition, a portion of the allowance accounts for the inherent imprecision in the allO\vance 
for credit loss analysis. During 2019 and 2018, there were no material changes to the accounting 
policy or methodology related to the allowance for loan losses. 

Loans deemed to be uncollectible arc charged against the allowance for loan losses, while recoveries of 
previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses. 

The following tables summarize the primary segments of the Allowance for Loan Loss segregated into 
the amount required for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for 
loans collectively evaluated for impairment. Activity in the allowance is presented for the year ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Balance, 
Beginning 

Chargeoffs 
Recoveries 
Provision 
Balance, Ending 

Portfolio Loans: 
Individually 

evaluated for 
impairment 

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 

Total Portfolio 
Loans 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

s 397,927 
(4,152) 
7,000 

(145,685) 
$ 2s,,020 

s 2,613,178 

24,228,563 

$ 26.841,741 

Other 
Commercial 

s 390,758 
(143,462) 

250 997 
$ 498 293 

s 95,496 

45,690,020 

$ 45,78'i.Sl6 

23 

2019 
Residential 
Real Estate Consumer Total 

s 518,076 s 68,585 $ 1,375,346 
(30,000) (22,144) (199,758) 

123 7,123 
17 738 26 950 150,000 

$ 505,9)7 $ 7l 39I $ 1,332,711 

s 1,931,182 $ 25,704 s 4,665,560 

40,679,651 7,287,545 117,885, 779 

$ 42,610,SB s 7.ll3,249 S 122,551,339 
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NOTE 4. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

LOANS (CONTINUED) 

2018 
Commercial Other Residential 
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer 

Balance, 
Beginning s 376,590 s 277,590 $ 478,287 $ 60,753 

Chargeoffs (85,500) (91,456) (39,541) 
Recoveries 292,827 5,978 2,l00 
Provision (185,990) 113,168 125,267 45 273 
Balance, Ending $ 397.927 s 390.7S8 $ Sl8.076 $ 68.58S 

Portfolio Loans: 
Individually 

evaluated for 
impairment $ 2,384,601 s 216,890 $ 1,176,543 $ 

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 33,401,958 36,559,277 37,764,590 6,890,009 

Total Portfolio 
Loans S 3S,786.,S9 S 36,776,167 S 38.941,133 s 6,890.009 

Total 

$ 1,193,220 
(216,497) 
300,905 

97 718 
s ).37S.346 

$ 3,778,034 

114,615,834 

5 118 393.868 

NOTE 5. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, is as follows: 

Land 
Bank premises 
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 

Allowance for depreciation 

2019 2018 

S 376,342 
2,347,303 
1,441.999 
4,165,644 

(3,154,351) 
$ j,QJ ].293 

S 376,342 
2,312,303 
1,338,419 
4,027,064 

(2,983,942) 
S 1,043.122 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 was approximately 
$170,000, $166,000, and S 146,000, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, 11\'C, 

l\'OTE 6. DEPOSITS 

Deposits at December 31, were as follows: 

Deposits of individuals, partnerships, 
and corporations 

Non interest bearing demand 
Interest be;1ring demand 
Money market 
Savings 
Time deposits 

Total deposits 

2019 

$ 54,009,000 
20,213,000 

4,849,000 
66,447,000 
33.303.000 

$ I 78.821,000 

2018 

$ 46,414,000 
18,764,000 
5,619,000 

60,771,000 
33.095.000 

$ t 64.663.000 

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more at December 31, 2019 
and 2018, was approximately $4,563,000 and S3,357,000, respectively. 

At December 31, 2019, the approximate scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

2020 s 13,452,000 
2021 12,942,000 
2022 3,848,000 
2023 1,442,000 
202..f and thereafter 1.619.000 

s 33.31)3.000 

NOTE 7. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, are 
reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with the transaction. The Company may be 
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The 
majority of the Bank's securities sold under agreements to repurchase are for periods of six months or 
less. 

Additional information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of December 31, 
2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

2019 2018 

Average amount $ 6.!S0.000 S 14.480.000 

Average interest rate 1 070/,, 085% 

Balance at end of year s 2,212.996 $ 12,t:i4.72S 

Interest expense $ 65 551 $ I 2Z 886 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA TEME'ffS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 

NOTE 9, 

The following items of other operating expense exceeded one percent of total revenue for at least one of 
the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017: 

2019 2018 2017 
Other Noninterest Expense: 

Director's fees $ 467,500 $ 445,000 s 441,000 
FDIC and state fees 49,787 72,630 74,935 
Bankcard processing expense 200,169 185,946 173,973 
All other operating expenses 594,969 546 904 556,295 

Total s 1,312.425 s I 25Q.48Q S 1,246.203 

INCOME TAXES 

The allocation of federal and state income h1xes between current and deferred expenses for the years 
ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 is as follows: 

2019 2018 2017 
Current tax expense: 

Federal $ 854,000 s 845,000 S 1,072,000 
State 181,500 165,000 138,000 

1,035,500 1,010,000 1,210,000 
Deferred tax (benefit) expense: 

Federal 9,300 (15,600) 136,700 
State 2 700 (4,400) (7,500) 

12 000 (20,000) 129,200 
INCOME TAXES $ 1.047500 s 990,000 s ),339,200 

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax 
rates for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 are summarized as follows: 

2019 2018 2017 

Amount _Ji_ Amount _Ji_ Amount ~ 

Statutory federal tax rate $ 920,100 21.0% s 891,800 21.0% S 1,138,400 34.0% 
[ncrease (decrease) 

resulting from: 
State taxes, net of federal 

tax benefit 146,100 3.3% 126,000 3.0% 83,600 2.5% 
Tax-exempt income (21,300) (0.5%) (29,300) (1.0%) (53,900) (1.6%) 
Other items, net 2 600 I 500 7 700 0.2% 

1,047,500 23.8% 990,000 23.0% 1,175,800 35.1% 

Change in federal tax rate 163,400 4.9% 

INCOME TAXES s 1,047,500 238% s 220,000 23 0% s 1,339,200 -10,0°LQ 
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NOTE 9. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED) 

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act") was signed into law. The Tax Act 
lmvered the Company's historical federal corporate tax rate from 34% to 21% effective January 1, 
2018 and made numerous other tax la,v changes. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires companies to recognize the effect of tax Ian' changes in the period of enactment, As a 
result, the Company recorded deferred income tax expense of$163,400 in 2017 due to the required 
remeasurement of the Compan;y's deferred tax assets and liabilities. 

The components of the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) at December 31, 2019 and 2018, are as 
follows: 

2019 2018 

Deferred tax assets: 
Provision for loan loss $ 267,000 $ 267,000 
Employee benefit plans 99,900 l01,900 
Net unrealized depreciation on AFS securities 21 000 148,400 

Gross deferred tax assets 387,900 517,300 

Deferred tax (liabilities): 
Depreciation (105,200) (103,600) 
Accretion on investments {13,500) {9,300) 

Gross deferred tax (liabilities) (118,700) (112,900) 

Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 262,200 s :10:11::l:OO 

No deferred income tax asset valuation was provided since it is more-likely-tlrnn-not that realization of 
the deferred income tax assets will occur in future years. 

The Company's evaluation on December 31, 2019, revealed no uncertain tax positions that would lrnve 
a material impact on the financial statements. The 2016 through 2019 tax years remain subject to 
examination by the tax authorities. The Company does not believe that any reasonably possible 
changes will occur within the next h\-'elve months that will have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Determination of Fair Value 

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and 
liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted 
market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company's 
various financial instruments. In cases ,vhere quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques arc 
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash 
flm"'r'S. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the 
instrument. 

The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an 
orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at 
the measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the 
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of 
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which 
willing market participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions 
depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment. The fair value is 
a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair \'alue under current market 
comlitions. 

Fair Value Hiernrchy 

The Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured at fair value in 
three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities arc traded and the reliability of 
the assumptions used to determine fair value. 

Level I-Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities 
generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations 
are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets 
or liabilities. 

Level 2-Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that arc 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly 01· indirectly. The valuation may be based on 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full 
term of the asset or liability. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued) 

Level 3-Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include 
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which determination of fair value 
requires significant management judgment or estimation. 

A finanrial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the company in estimating fair value disclosures 
for financial instruments: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instrnments approximate fair values based on the 
short-term nature of the assets. 

Securities 
Fair value estimates are based on pricing models and discounted cash flows that consider standard 
input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, 
broker/dealer quotes, and credit spreads, if quoted market prices are not available. 

Loans Receivable 
For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair 
values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain mortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four family 
residential) and other consumer loans are based on quoted market prices of similar loans sold in 
conjunction with securitization transactions, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. Fair 
values for other loans (e.g., commercial real estate and investment property mortgage loans, 
commercial and industrial loans) arc estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using market 
interest rates for comparable loans. Fair values for non-performing loans are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, n·here applicable. 

Deposit Liabilities 
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, passbook 
savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount 
payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of 
variable rate, fixed term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair 
values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a 
discounted cash llow calculation that applies market interest rates on comparable instruments to a 
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COi'ffINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALl/E OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Short Term Borrowings 
The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased, borro,vings under repurchase agreements, and 
other short term borrowings maturing within ninety clays approximate their fair values. Fair 
values of other short term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on 
the company's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. 

Accrued Interest 
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair mine. 

Assets and Liabilities Measure,/ at Fair Value 011 a Recurring Basis 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below: 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019 

Investment securities: 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

Available-for-sale 533,630,027 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

l\farkets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level I) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level2) 

S33.630 027 

Fair Value i\ileasurements at December 31, 2018 

Investment securities: 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

Available-for-sale $5),540508 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level I) 

AHets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$5).540508 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Certain financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Adjustments to the fair value of these assets usually result 
from the application of lower-of-cost-or-nrnrket accounting or write-downs of individual assets. 
Impaired loans allocated to the Allowance for Loan Losses are measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis. Any fair value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred as provision for 
loan losses expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The following describes the valuation techniques used to measure impaired lo:1ns recorded at fair 
value on a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements. 

Impaired Loans: Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management based on 
current information and events, it is probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms 
of the loan agreement will not be collected. Impairment is measured based upon the present value of 
expected future cash flows from the loan discounted at the loan's effective rate and the loan's 
observable market price or the fair value of collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. Fair value is 
measured using a market approach based on the value of the collateral securing the loans. Collateral 
may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment, inventory, and accounts 
receivable. The vast majority of the collateral is real estate. The value of real estate collateral is 
determined utilizing an appraisal conducted by an indeJ)endent, licensed appraiser outside of the Bank 
using comparable property sales (Level 2). However, if the collateral is a house or building in the 
process of construction or if an appraisal of the real estate property is over hvo years old, then the fair 
value is considered Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appraisal if 
deemed significant, or the net book value on the applicable business' financial statements if not 
considered significant using observable market data. Likewise, values for inventory and accounts 
receivables collateral are based on financial statement balances or aging reports (Level 3). 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized belm'I-·: 

Impaired Loans 

Impaired Loans 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 
S S.182,878 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

l\farkcts for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level I) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2018 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 
5 S,207.993 

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level I) 
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Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

S 5,182,878 

Significant 
llnobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ S 207,993 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE~IENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE IO. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

The estimated fair values, and related carrying or notional amounts, of the Company's financial 
instruments are as follows: 

December 31, 
2019 2018 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

FINANCIAL ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents S 47,979,353 S 47,979,353 527,945,883 S27,945,883 
Securities available-for-sale 33,630,027 33,630,027 51,540,508 51,540,508 
Federal Home Loan Bank 

stock 96,600 96,600 93,000 93,000 
Loans, net 121,218,628 120,742,931 117,018,522 116,152,292 
Accrued interest receivable 605,151 605,151 703,977 703,977 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 
Deposits 178,821,029 178,760,732 164,663,041 164,806,0 I 7 
Repurchase agreements 2,212,996 2,212,996 12,154,725 12,154,725 
Accrued interest payable 120,122 120,122 93,445 93,445 

NOTE II. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES 

The Company is a party to credit-related financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the 
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These fimmcial instruments 
include commitments to extend credit, including lines of credit as well as letters of credit. Such 
commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the 
amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company's exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these 
commitments. The Company follmYs the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for 
on-balance sheet instruments. 

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the follmving financial instruments were outstanding whose 
approximate contract amounts represent credit risk: 

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 
Letters-of-credit 
Commitments to grant loans 
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2019 

$ 19,732,000 
700,000 

9,446,000 
S 29,878 QQQ 

S 17,017,000 
810,000 

3,915.000 
S 21,742.000 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 11. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

Commitments to extend credit arc agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Certain commitments, such as equity lines of 
credit, may expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, ifit is deemed 
necessary by the Bank, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. 

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit and revolving credit lines are commitments 
for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines-of-credit are generally 
uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity elate and may not be dnwn1 upon to 
the total extent to ,Yhich the Bank is committed. 

Letters-of-credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support 
private borrowing arrangements. The letters-of-credit issued have expiration dates within one to five 
years. The credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loans to customers. The Bank's policy for obtaining collate ml, and the nature of such 
collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
At various times throughout the year, the Comp:uty had cash on deposit with other financial 
institutions in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

NOTE 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to principal officers and directors 
and their affiliates. Set forth below is a summary of the related party loan activity for the years ended 
December 2019 and 2018: 

2019 2018 

Balance, beginning s 413,000 $ 397,500 
New loans 167,300 150,000 
Repayments (84,900) {134,500) 

Balance, ending $ ~2~.400 s 413!000 

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at December 31, 2019 and 2018, were approximately 
$7,022,000 and SS,607,000, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEiVIENTS (CONTli'WED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC, 

NOTE 13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Following are the components of other comprehensive income (loss) as of December 31, 2016, 
and for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2018, and 2019: 

December 31, 2016, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Deferred Tax 
Other Comprehensive (Loss) for 2017 

Unrealized (losses) on securities 
available-for-sale 

l\'linimum pension liability 
Deferred income tax effect 

Reclassification for effect of remeasuring 
deferred tax asset (Note 19) 

December 31, 2017, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Deferred Tax 
Other Comprehensive (Loss) for 2018 

Unrealized (losses) on securities 
available-for-sale 

Minimum pension liability 
Deferred income tax effect 

December 31, 2018, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Deferred Tax 
Other Comprehensive Income for 2019 

Unrealized gain on securities 
available-for-sale 

Minimum pension liability 
Deferred income tax effect 

December 31, 2019, Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of 

Deferred Tax 
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Unrealized 
Gain (Loss) 
on Securities 

Available-

$ 

$ 

For-Sale 

(171,980) 

(31,436) 

13,000 
(18,436) 

( 4 I ,300) 

(231,716) 

(232,330) 

62 700 
(169,630) 

(401,346) 

627,304 

(127,500) 
499,804 

98.4'\8 

Minimum 
Pension 

(Liability) 

s (387,132) 

25,620 
(8,711) 
16,909 

(72,900) 

(443,123) 

25,247 
26,811 
52,058 

(391,065) 

(23,349) 
4 300 

(19,049) 

$ 1410 I 14) 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) 

s (559,112) 

(31,436) 
25,620 

4 289 
(1,527) 

! 114,200) 

(674,839) 

(232,330) 
25,247 
89,511 

(117,572) 

(792,411) 

627,304 
(23,349) 

(123,200) 
480,755 

s Ill J 6'\6) 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COi\'TINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 14, RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS 

The primary source of funds for the dividends paid by Citizens Bancshares, Inc. is dividends received 
from its subsidiary, The Citizens Bank of\Veston, Inc. The approval of the regulatory agencies is 
required if the total of all dividends declared by the subsidiary bank in any calendar year exceeds the 
subsidiary bank's net profits, as defined, for that year combined with its retained net profits for the 
preceding hYo calendar years. 

NOTE 15. AVAILABLE BORROWINGS 

The subsidiary bank has available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh a line of credit with 
maximum borrowings as of December 31, 2019, of approximately $58,132,000. This line of credit has a 
variable interest rnte based on the Federal Home Loan Bank's cost of funds and is collateralized by 
certain qualifying assets :1s defined by the agreement. The Bank had no borrowings under this 
agreement as of December 31, 2019. 

During 2019, the Bank had available a $5,000,000 line of credit with a separate financial institution. 
The Bank had no borrowings under this agreement as of December 31, 2019. 

The Bank had similar borrowing arrangements for 2018. At December 31, 2018, the Bank had no 
borrowings outstanding. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN 

Effective January 1, 2009, the Bank implemented a freeze on its defined benefit pension plan. 
Employees participating in the plan prior to the effective date will receive the benefits they have 
already accrued, but will not receive benefit for additional time with the bank. New employees will be 
excluded from entering into the plan. 

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2019 are the following amounts 
that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost: unrecognized prior service costs of S-0-, 
and unrecognized actuarial losses of S559, 113 (S408,200, net of tax), The prior service credit and 
actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net 
periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 is S-0- and $10,489 (S7,600, net of 
tax), respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Net periodic pension cost included the follmving components: 

Year Ended December 31~ 
2019 2018 2017 

Service cost $ s $ 
Interest cost 71,047 66,429 75,736 
Expected return on plan assets (91,735) (98,147) (97,970) 
Amortization of transition asset 
Amortization of loss 10,357 11,253 12,487 
Amortization of prior service cost {12,961) (35,868) {35,868) 

Net periodic pension cost (23,292) (56,333) (45,615) 
ASC 715 Event 45 479 

Total Net Periodic Pension Cost $ (23.292) $ (56 333) $ ()36) 

\Veighted-average assumption: 
Discount rate 4.21% 3.57% 4.02% 
Expected return on assets 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 
Rate of compensation increase NIA NIA NIA 

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical returns of various 
benchmark indices and the plan's current asset mix. 

The subsidiary bank does not expect to make any contributions to its pension plan in 2020. 

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

Change in projected benefit obligation: 
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain) 
Assumption change 
Projected benefit at end of the year 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at encl of the year 

Funded status 
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s 

$ 

2019 2018 

1,727,679 s 1,900,856 
71,047 66,429 

(78,416) (46,413) 
(39,079) (36,132) 
207,220 (157,061) 

1,888,451 1,727,679 

1,350,615 1,442,212 
239,130 (45,184) 
(78,416) {46,413) 

1,511,329 1,350,615 

<,n n2J $ (371,064) 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

\Veighted-average assumptions at end of year 
Discount rate 
Rt,te of compensation increase 
Mortality Table 

2019 

3.19% 
N/A 

PRl-2012 
Proj. Scale 
MP-2019 

2018 

4.21% 
N/A 

RP-2014 
Proj. Scale 
MP-2018 

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of: 

2019 2018 

Current assets s $ 
Noncurrent assets 
Noncurrent liabilities {377,122) {377,064) 

$ (377,122) $ (317,064) 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), before tax effect, consists of: 

2019 2018 

Net (loss) gain $ (20,746) s 49,862 
Amortization of prior service cost (12,961) (35,868) 
Amortization of gain 10 357 11,253 

$ (23,350) $ 2'1,247 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was SI,888,451 and 
$1,727,679 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The subsiclhuy bank's pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2019 and 2018, are as follows: 

Asset Category 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Debt securities 
Equity securities 
Total 
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Percentage of Plan Assets 
at December 31 

2019 2018 

2% 2% 
•H¾ 52% 
57% 46% 

JOO% 100°['! 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The subsidiary bank's weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2019 and 2018, were 
approximately: 

Asset Category 
Cash, cash equivalents, fixed 

income (bonds and bond funds) 

Equities (common stock and 
stock funds) 

Target 
Asset 
Mix 

...1fil.2..... ...1Q!.L 

50% 50% 

50% 50% 

Plan 
Allocation 

Range 

20-70% 

30-80% 

\Veighted-Average 
Percentage of Plan 

Assets at 
December 31, 
2019 ..1filL 

48% 51% 

52% 49% 

The investment policy, as established by the plan's trustee, is to invest in assets based on the target 
allocations shown above. The assets will be reallocated periodically by the trustee based on the 
allocation ranges set forth in the plan to meet target allocations. The investment policy ,Yill be 
reviewed periodically to determine if the policy or the actual asset allocation range should be 
changed. The plan assets will be invested with the primary goal to pursue long-term capital growth, 
with a goal of meeting the long-term needs of the portfolio. The secondary goal is to preserve capital 
and mitigate the year-to-year volatility that could greatly impact the availability of funds for financial 
needs at the Bank's discretion. Assets will be invested in a balanced portfolio composed primarily of 
equities, fixed income, and cash or cash equivalent money market investments. 

To minimize risk through proper diversification, no individual holding may exceed 10% of total 
market value, and no more than 30% of total assets may be invested in any one industry. To the 
extent possible, the fixed income portion of the portfolio will be diversified by issuer and by maturity 
date and the equity portion of the investment portfolio will be adequately diversified by industry, 
investment style, and geographic region. 

The company groups its pension plan assets in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets 
are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels arc as 
follows: 

Level I - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement 
date for identical assets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market 
transactions involving identical assets. 

Level 2 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are 
observable either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset. Valuations are 
obtained from pricing models and discounted rash flmvs that consider standard input factors such as 
observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate volatilities, broker/dealer tJuotes, and credit 
spreads. 

Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets. Valuation methodologies vary based upon the 
individual types of assets. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The fair values of the Bank's pension plan assets at December 31, 2019 and 2018, by asset category 
are as follows: 

2019 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for Significant Significant 

Identical Observable Unobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs 

Asset Categor:y Total {Level I) {Level 2) {Level 3) 
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 29,118 s 29,118 s $ 

Equity securities: 
Common stock 736,335 736,335 
1\"lutual funds 127,804 127,804 

Fixed income: 
l\lutual funds 300,556 300,556 
Government 

securities 317 516 317 516 
$ 1.511,329 5 1.193.8)3 s 317.516 

2018 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for Significant Significant 

Identical Observable lJnobservable 
Assets Inputs Inputs 

Asset Category Total {Level I) {Level2) {Level 3) 
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 24,281 $ 24,281 s $ 

Equity securities: 
Common stock 536,983 536,983 
l\lutual funds 89,077 89,077 

Fixed income: 
Mutual funds 284,254 284,254 
Government 

securities ~ 16,020 416,020 
$ !,lS0,615 $ 934,525 s 416,020 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 16. PE1".SION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Estimated future benefit payments, as appropriate, for each of the next five fiscal years, and in the 
aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter, are as follows: 

Year{s) Amount 

2020 s 80,000 
2021 93,000 
2022 100,000 
2023 100,000 
2024 97,000 
2025 -2029 474 000 

Total s 2::1:1,000 

In addition to the defined benefit plan, the Company's subsidiary, The Citizens Bank of\Vcston, Inc., 
also has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan covering substantially all eligible employees. Under the 
provisions of the plan, eligible employees may defer a portion of their compensation, not to exceed the 
dollar limit determined by law. A matching contribution equal to a percentage of the amount the 
employee deferred is determined annually by the employer. Employees must complete six months of 
service before they are eligible to participate. The Company contributed approximately $145,000, 
$127,000, and $77,000 to the plan for the years ended 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively. 

NOTE 17. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital 
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's and the Bank's 
financial statements. 

Under the regulatory capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve 
quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory reporting requirements. The capital ainounts and classifications under the prompt 
corrective action guidelines are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 
components, risk weightings and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not 
applicable to bank holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and 
the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total capital, tier I capital, common equity tier 
l capital to risk-weighted assets (as defined in the regulations), and leverage capital, which is tier I 
capital to adjusted average total assets (as defined). i\lanagement believes, as of December 31, 2019 
and 2018, the Company and the Bank meet all the capital adequacy requirements to which they are 
subject. 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 17. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

As of December 31, 2019, the most recent notification from the regulator)' agencies categorized the 
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To remain 
categorized as well capitalized, an institution will have to maintain minimum total capital, common 
equity tier 1 capital, tier 1 capital, and leverage capital ratios as disclosed in the following table. 
There are no conditions or events since the most recent notification that management believes have 
changed the institution's prompt corrective action category. 

The following table outlines the regulatory components of the Company's and the Bank's capital and 
capital ratios as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Actual 

Amount Ratio 
.-\s of December 3 I. 2019: 
Total Capital to Risk-\\'eighted Assets: 

Consolidated S 24,981,000 18.89% 
Subsidiary bank S 24,974,000 18.88% 

Tier I Capital to Risk-Weighted .-\sscts: 
Consolidatrd S 23,648,000 17.87% 
Subsidiary bank S 23,6-H,OOO 17.87% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated S 23,648,000 17.87% 
Subsidiary hank S 23,641,000 17.87% 

Lenrnge Capital to .-\djusted .-\\'crage Total .-\ssets: 
Consolidated S 23,648,000 I 1.51 % 
Subsidiary bank S 23,641,000 I 1.51 % 

.-\s of December 31, 2018: 
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 

Consolidated S 23,439,000 18.6% 
Subsidiary bank S 23,430,000 18.6% 

Tier I Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets: 
Consolidated S 22,064,000 17.5% 
Subsidiary hank S 22,055,000 17.5% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted .-\ssets: 
Consolidated S 22,064,000 17.5% 
Subsidiary bank S 22,055,000 17.5% 

Lenragc Capital to Adjusted .-he rage Total Assets: 
Consolidated S 22,064,000 11.0% 
Subsidiary bank S 22,055,000 I 1.0% 
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For Capital 
Adequacy 
Purnoses 

SI 0,585,000 
SI 0,555,000 

S 7,939,000 
S 7,939,000 

S 5,954,000 
S 5,954.000 

S 8,217.000 
S 8,217,000 

SI 0,059,000 
SI 0,059,000 

S 7,546,000 
S 7,546,000 

S 5,660,000 
S 5,660,000 

S 8,053,000 
S 8,053,000 

Minimum To Be 
Well Capitalized 

l 1ndrr Prompt 
Corrective Action 

Provisions 

Ratio Amount 

8.0% NIA 
8.0% S 13,231,000 

6.0% "'S./A 
6.0% S 10,585,000 

"'S./A 
10.0%1 

4.5% ':\/A ':\/A 
4.5% S 8,600,000 6.5% 

4.0% 1"/.-\ :\'/A 
4.0% SI0,272,000 5.0% 

8.0% :,ifA :,ifA 
8.0% S 12,577.000 10.0% 

6.0% :,ifA :,if.\ 
6.0% SI 0,059,000 8.0% 

-1.5% "'S./A ':\/A 
4.5% S 8,175,000 6.5% 

4.0% :,if..\ :,if,\ 
4.0% SI 0,066,000 5.0% 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED l'INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT cmlPANY 

The investment of the Company {Citizens Bancshares, Inc.) in its wholly~m'r·ned subsidiary, The 
Citizens Bank of \Veston, Inc., is presented on the equity method of accounting. The Company's 
balance sheets at December 31, 2019 and 2018, as well as the related statements of income and cash 
flows for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 are as follon·s: 

BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 2019 and 2018 

2019 
ASSETS 

Cash $ 14,603 
Investment in The Citizens Bank of \Veston, Inc. 23,329.701 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

$ 23,344.304 

$ 8,000 

23,336.304 

$ 23,344.304 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

2018 

$ 8,872 
21,262,617 

$ 21,271,489 

$ 

21,271.489 

S 21.271,489 

Years Ended December 31,2019, 2018, and 2017 

2019 
INCOME 

Dividend from bank subsidiary S 1,808,000 

EXPENSES 
Operating expenses 

Income Before 
Equity in Undistributed Net 
Income of Subsidiary 

Equity in Undistributed Net 
Income of Subsidiary 

NET INCOME 

(60,269) 

1,747,731 

1,586.329 

S 3,334.060 

2017 

S 1,798,750 $ 1,683,000 

(56,011) (48,811) 

1,742,739 1,634,189 

1,513,818 374 877 

$ 3 256 SS7 $ 2,009,066 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT cmIPANY (CONTINUED) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December .31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 

2019 2018 2017 
Cash Flo,vs From Operating Activities: 

Net income $ 3,334,060 S 3,256,557 $ 2,009,066 
Adjustment to reconcile net 

income to net cash proYided 
by operating activities: 

Increase in other liabilities 8,000 
Equity in undistributed net 

income of Subsidiary (1,586,329) (1,513,818) (374,877) 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,755,731 1,742,739 1,634,189 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 
Dividends paid {1,750,000) {1,750,000) {1,638,000) 

NET CASH (USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES fl, 750,000) (1,750,000) {1,638,000) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 5,731 (7,261) (3,811) 

Cash at Beginning of Year 8 872 16,133 19 944 

Cash at End of Year s 14,603 $ 8,812 $ 16,lol 

NOTE 19. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

For the year ended December 3 t, 2017, the Company adopted ASU 2018-02 - Reclassification of Certain 
Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. Prior to the issuance of ASU 2018-02, 
generally accepted accounting principles required deferred tax liabilities and assets to be adjusted for 
the effect of a change in tax laws or rates with the effect included in income from continuing operations 
in the reporting period that includes the enactment elate, induding situations in which the related 
income tax effect of items in accumulated other comprehensive income were originally recognized in 
other comprehensive income, rather than in net income. 

The amendments in ASU 2018-02 allow reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income 
to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the recently enacted federal corporate 
income tax rate. The amount of the reclassification is equal to the difference between the historical 
statutory federal corporate income tax rate of 34% and the recently enacted 21% statutory federal 
corporate income tax rate. Consequently, the adoption of ASU 2018-02 eliminated the stranded tax 
effects associated with the change in the federal corporate income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 
of2017 and improved the usefulness of the information reported in these financial statements. The 
adoption of ASU 2018-02 was applied retrospectively by the Company. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITIZENS BANCSHARES, INC. 

NOTE 19. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (CONTINUED) 

The effect of the change in accounting principle is as follmvs: 

Prior to 
Adoption of 
ASU 2018-02 

December31 2017 
After 

Adoption of 
ASlJ 2018-02 

Effect of 
Change 

Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
(loss) $ (560,639) S (674,839) S (114,200) 

Retained earnings 17,557,343 114,200 

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through !\larch 9, 2020, the date these consolidated 
financial statements were issued. No material subsequent events have occurred since December 31, 
2019, requiring recognition or disclosure. 

44 



v; Citizens Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 

Officers and Directors 
Citizens Bancshares, Inc.- Officers and Directors 

WT. Weber, Jr., Chairman and President 
Gene H. Edwards, Jr., Vice Chain-nan and Secretary 

Board of Directors 
WT Weber, Jr. Gene H. Edwards, Jr. 

Chainnan of the Board and President 
and Chairman, Citizens Bank of VVeston 

Vice Chairman and Secretary 

WT Weber lII 
Treasurer 

James L. Sherrell R. Dennis Xander 
Charles C. Stalnaker 

Citizens Bank of Weston- Officers and Directors 
W:7: Wehe,; fr., Chairman 
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